
 

A G E N D A  •  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2340 

www.cityofclovis.com 

C

o

u

n

c

i

l 

C

h

a

m

b

e

r

, 

1

0

3

3 

F

i

f

t

h 

S

t

r

e

e

t

, 

C

l

o

v

i

s

, 

C

A 

9

3

6

1

2 

(

5

5

9

) 

3

2

4

-

 

February 25, 2021 6:00 PM Council Chamber 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special assistance to access 
and/or participate in this Planning Commission meeting, please contact the Planning Division at (559) 
324-2340 (TTY – 711). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
* SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DUE TO COVID-19* 

 
Given the current Shelter-in-Place Order covering the State of California and the Social Distance 
Guidelines issued by Federal, State, and Local Authorities, the City is implementing the following 
changes to participate in Planning Commission meetings until notified otherwise. The Council 
chambers will be open to the public but we will be implementing social distancing policies and will limit 
the number of people who may be in the Council chambers. Face masks are required to attend.  We 
are encouraging residents to participate virtually following the directions below. If you are sick, please 
do not attend the meeting. Any member of the Planning Commission may participate from a remote 
location by teleconference. 
 

 The meeting will be webcast and accessed at: https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-
development/planning/planning-commission/planning-commission-agendas/ 
 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-development/planning/planning-commission/planning-
commission-agendas/  at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.). You will be 
prompted to provide:  
 

 Planning Commission Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment (please limit to 300 words or 3 minutes) 

 
 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 

 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the Planning Commission noting the item 

number.  Your written comment will be made part of the record. 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-development/planning/planning-commission/planning-commission-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-development/planning/planning-commission/planning-commission-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-development/planning/planning-commission/planning-commission-agendas/
https://cityofclovis.com/planning-and-development/planning/planning-commission/planning-commission-agendas/


 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 

item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 

 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the Planning Commission during the meeting. However, staff 

cannot guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to the 

Planning Commission during the meeting. All written comments received prior to the end of 

the meeting will be made part of the record of proceedings. 

 
Verbal Comments 
 
 If you wish to speak to the Commission on the item by telephone, you must contact the City 

Planner, Dave Merchen, at (559) 324-2346 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
 

 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 
instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting. Staff recommends participants log 
into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 You will be able to speak to the Planning Commission for up to three (3) minutes.  
  

 
Webex Participation 
 
 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 

communicating with the host of the virtual meeting. To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment. The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the Planning 
Commission. Due to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee 
that these written and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur. Participants desiring to 
make a verbal comment via chat will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with 
audio transmission capabilities. 
 

Commission Members: Paul Hinkle Chair, Mike Cunningham Chair Pro Tem, Alma Antuna, Brandon 
Bedsted, Amy Hatcher 

              *     *     *     *     *      

The Planning Commission welcomes you to this meeting.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate at 
this meeting, please contact Planning Division staff at (559) 324-2340.  Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

2



Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding any item on 
this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City of Clovis Planning Division, located 
in the Planning and Development Services building, between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through 
Friday.  In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City’s website at 
www.cityofclovis.com. 

ABOUT THE MEETING 

The Planning Commission consists of five Clovis residents appointed by the City Council to make 
decisions and recommendations on City planning issues.  Decisions made by the Planning Commission 
may be appealed to the City Council.   

After the approval of minutes, the Chairperson of the Planning Commission will ask for business from 
the floor.  If you wish to discuss something which is NOT listed on the agenda, you should speak up at 
this time.   

Next, the Planning Commission will discuss each item listed on the agenda.  For the items on the 
agenda which are called "public hearings," the Planning Commission will try to follow the procedure 
listed below:   

For each matter considered by the Commission, there will first be a staff presentation, followed by a 
presentation from the project applicant.  Testimony from supporters of the project will then be taken, 
followed by testimony from those in opposition.  The applicant will have the right to a final rebuttal 
presentation prior to closing the public hearing.  Once this is complete, the Chairperson will close the 
public hearing and the Commission will discuss the item and cast their votes. 

If you wish to speak on an item, please step to the podium and clearly state your name and address 
for the record.  The Planning Commission wants to know how you feel about the items they are voting 
on, so please state your position clearly.  In accordance with Section 13 of Article 2 of the Planning 
Commission Rules and Regulations governing length of public debate, all public testimony from those 
in support and in opposition to the project will be limited to five minutes per person.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less. 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
FLAG SALUTE 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Planning Commission Minutes for the Meeting of January 28, 2021. 
 
COMMISSION SECRETARY COMMENTS 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS 

3



 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the Planning Commission on any matter 
that is not listed on the Agenda. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Consider Approval, Res. 21-___, CUP2021-001, A conditional use permit request to allow for 
the increase of the R-3 Zone District standard building height of 2 ½ stories (no greater than 35 
feet) to 3 stories (no greater than 35 feet) for proposed multifamily buildings on property located 
at 1703  De Wolf Avenue. Bottom Line Group LLC, Sachdeva Mickey Etal, property owners; Jay 
Virk, Bottom Line Group LLC, applicant.  
 
Staff: Lily Cha, Associate Planner 
Recommendation: Approve  

 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MEETINGS & KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular Planning Commission Meetings are held at 6 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are 
future meeting dates:  
 
March 25, 2021 
 
April 15, 2021 
 
May 27, 2021 

4



CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
January 28, 2021 

 
 
A modified meeting of the Clovis Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Hatcher 
in the Clovis Council Chamber.  
  
Flag salute led by Chair Hatcher 
 
Present: Commissioners Antuna (via Webex), Bedsted, Cunningham, Hinkle, Chair Hatcher 
   
Absent:  None 
 
Staff:  Dave Merchen, City Planner 
  Ricky Caperton, Senior Planner 
  George Gonzalez, Senior Planner 
  Sean Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
  Michael Linden, City Attorney 
     
PLANNING COMMISSION REORGANIZATION 
Nomination and vote of Planning Commission Chair and Chair Pro Tempore. Commissioner Hinkle was 
nominated for Planning Commission Chair by Chair Hatcher, seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. 
Chair Hatcher was nominated for Chair Pro Tem by Commissioner Hinkle; the motion was withdrawn 
following discussion of the rotation method for the positions. Commissioner Cunningham was nominated 
for Chair Pro Tem by Commissioner Hinkle, seconded by Chair Hatcher. The motion to approve the 
nominations was approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
MINUTES 

1. The Commission approved the December 17, 2020, minutes by a vote of 5-0.   
 
COMMISSION SECRETARY 
None. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS COMMENTS 
None. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REFERRALS 
Item of correspondence related to Agenda Item X-4. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
None. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

2. Consider Approval - Res. 21-__, CUP2020-008, A request for a conditional use permit allowing 
for the construction of a gas station and +4,500 square-foot convenience store with a Type 21 
(beer, wine, and distilled spirits) alcoholic beverage control license located at 984 West Shaw 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 
  
 

Avenue. Steven G. Sanders, Trustee of Steve G. Sanders Trust, owner; Randel Mathias, 
applicant and representative. 
 

Senior Planner Ricky Caperton requested a continuance to a date uncertain. 

At this point, the Commission voted by consensus to continue CUP2020-008 to a date uncertain. The 
motion was approved by a vote of 5-0.  
 

3. Consider Approval - Res. 21-001, OA2021-002, A request to amend the standards of the R-1-
MD (Single Family Residential Medium Density) zone district and the general property 
development and use standards in conjunction with the adoption of objective standards for the 
development of single family residential housing projects. City of Clovis, applicant. 
 

City Planner Dave Merchen presented the staff report.  

Commissioner Cunningham inquired, in regards to the four-foot side setback, as to whether staff had 

done any research on the acceptability of such a setback, given that his own research into the size of 

trash totes means that such a setback will only leave six inches for a gate latch and hinges. City Planner 

Merchen responded that this setback has been adopted for an ample number of subdivisions within the 

City and that he believes there is a way for a gate to accommodate the totes. While he acknowledges 

that often totes have to be moved in order to allow a person to pass, staff has determined that four feet 

can work as a minimum standard. 

Commissioner Cunningham sought clarification as to the entity(ies) referred to by “the City.” City Planner 

Merchen clarified that the standard has been approved by the City Council and that it had been 

determined to be an acceptable minimum standard by Planning and Development staff as well as public 

safety staff. 

Commissioner Cunningham expressed confusion as to why the Planning Commission is addressing this 

if it is already standard. City Planner Merchen clarified that it is a standard that has been approved though 

PRD zoning, whereas tonight’s proposal would apply to the R-1-MD zone district as part of the objective 

standards. In addition, if this setback becomes codified for the R-1-MD zone district, then it would 

probably become viewed as the baseline for developments with lots of a similar size. 

Commissioner Cunningham remarked that though that may be correct, in his time on the Commission, 

there have been a lot of requests for this in other areas. He expressed concern about where to put the 

totes if a reduced side setback and reduced garage sizes prevent those areas from being used. City 

Planner Merchen responded that staff has substantially reviewed this issue and feels that these 

standards are appropriate for smaller lots. However, this does not prevent Commissioners from 

recommending a different standards. 

Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to whether totes are all required to be the same size, as she recalls 

seeing smaller totes and assumes that smaller houses would be able to use smaller totes. The issue of 

side setback vs trash tote storage has come up numerous times. She expressed understanding of 

Commissioner Cunningham’s view, but pointed out that a four-foot setback has been approved and it 

does not make sense to make developers come to the Planning Commission each time for the same 

request. Commissioner Cunningham responded that if the City Council has already approved the 

standard, then the Planning Commission should not have to address it. City Planner Merchen and 

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 
  
 

Supervising Civil Engineer Sean Smith both offered that they believe there is an option for residents to 

request totes of either a smaller or larger size. 

Commissioner Bedsted expressed that he is a proponent of setting standards, as setting precedent can 

make it challenging to address issues like this, which has come up for debate fairly often. However, he 

believes that the reduced setback will cause an increase in totes sitting out on the streets. Returning to 

Commissioner Cunningham’s last remark, he inquired as to whether this is actually a standard, as he 

was under the impression it had been approved as an exception to standards. In addition, he sought and 

received clarification regarding the allowance of tandem garages. He expressed concern that two-car 

tandem garages will, by their nature and in combination with shorter driveways, lead to an increased 

spillover of vehicles onto streets. 

Commissioner Antuna expressed agreement with Commissioners Cunningham and Bedsted, as it was 

also her understanding that the four-foot setback was an exception rather than a standard. Though she 

understands that City staff have found the four-foot/three-foot side yard setbacks acceptable, she 

wonders how many totes will be left out. She personally would not want to move a trash tote every time 

she needs to access her backyard from the side, and believes the Commission should possibly put 

forward a different recommendation when making a motion on this. 

Commissioner Hinkle expressed gratitude to City Planner Merchen and Planning Department staff for 

including all-weather pathways for trash totes, as most often totes being left out front are due to a lack of 

such. He expressed great difficulty with the four-foot garage-side setback, as he fears interference with 

first responders during critical moments. He also sought and received confirmation of swing garage 

dimensions, then expressed doubt regarding the proposed reduced garage sizes, as three quarters of 

vehicles sold in Clovis currently are SUVs or pickup trucks. He stated that the requirement for vehicle 

charging stations further reduces available space within garages. 

Commissioner Hatcher pointed out a section of the staff report calling out swing garage dimensions as 

being ten feet by twenty feet, then sought and received confirmation that the proposed reduced setbacks 

are just for the medium density, R-1-MD zone district. She also inquired as the current standard side yard 

setbacks for low density residential development. City Planner Merchen responded that it is five feet on 

both sides. 

Commissioner Hatcher inquired as to whether there had been any consideration towards having 

developers who use reduced site setbacks place fences in such a way that the totes can still be screened. 

City Planner Merchen responded that there had been no such discussion so far. 

Commissioner Hatcher remarked that, in regards to commentary regarding 1,800 square foot lots, she 

hopes the City never has to codify such, as she cannot imagine a lot that small. In term of side yards, 

she is unsure as to whether she would vote against them given the Commission’s propensity to approve 

them otherwise. Though she hears her fellow commissioners, she also has to take into account that the 

Police and Fire Departments do not have an issue getting in. 

Chair Hinkle returned to the question regarding the swing garage dimensions. City Planner Merchen 

responded that it seems to be an error and that it was a good thing to catch it now and change it to the 

twenty-foot by twenty-foot standard. 

At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 
 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 
  
 

 
There being none, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
City Planner Merchen clarified that the four-foot/three-foot setbacks approved previously by the City 
Council have all been as part of the PRD process, a process that has different standards for each 
subdivision. Therefore, the City Council has not approved these setbacks as a universal standard, but 
rather as one that has been found acceptable on an individual basis. 
 
Chair Hinkle sought and received confirmation that the Commission has the ability to make a motion to 
change the garage-side setback back to five feet, then invited Fire Department personnel present to 
comment if they wish.  Chief John Binaski offered to answer any questions if the Commission had any.  
No questions were presented. 
 
At this point, a motion was made by Chair Hinkle and seconded by Commissioner Bedsted to approve 
OA2021-002 with modifications to swing garage sizes to 20’ x 20’ and side setbacks in the R-1-MD Zone 
District to require a 5’ garage side setback. The motion was approved by a vote of 4-1, with Commissioner 
Hatcher dissenting. 
 

4. Consider Approval - Res. 21-002, CUP2020-007, A request for a conditional use permit for the 
construction of a +9,400 square-foot ambulatory surgery center on a portion of an approximately 
2.7-acre parcel located at 570 North Magnolia Avenue. AMEL Investments, LLC, a California 
Limited Liability Company, owner; Eric Lindvall, AMEL Investments, LLC, applicant; Marlette 
Associates, representative. 
 

Senior Planner George Gonzalez presented the staff report. 

At this point, the Chair opened the floor to the applicant. 

Ron Marlette of Marlette Associates offered to answer any questions. 

Chair Hinkle sought confirmation regarding the currently proposed operational hours and the applicant 

potentially seeking expansion of those hours in the future. Mr. Marlette deferred such questions to the 

applicant. 

Commissioner Bedsted inquired as to whether any parking spaces would be specifically designated for 

patient pickup. Mr. Marlette responded that, rather than designate parking, there would be a set patient 

arrival/departure area, providing an explanation. 

Eric Lindvall stepped forward to answer operational questions. 

Chair Hinkle returned to the issue of proposed operational hours and recommended that the applicant 

expand them now rather than having to come back sometime in the future to modify them. Do so now 

would give them flexibility to change hours later as needed without having to repeat this process. Mr. 

Lindvall provided information regarding the currently proposed operational hours and expressed 

willingness to expand them now in order to simplify the process. 

Commissioner Hatcher recommended the hours of 5:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. Mr. Lindvall agreed to them. 

Chair Hinkle assured that such hours would not affect any other business, but would ensure maximum 

flexibility for their own business. 

At this point, the Chair opened the floor to those in favor. 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 
  
 

 
There being none, the Chair opened the floor to those in opposition. 
 
At this point, the Chair closed the public portion. 
 
At this point, a motion was made by Commissioner Cunningham and seconded by Commissioner Hatcher 
to approve CUP2020-007 with an added condition allowing for operational hours of 5:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
The motion was approved by a vote of 5-0.  
 
OLD BUSINESS  
None. 
  
NEW BUSINESS  
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT AT 7:04 P.M. UNTIL the Planning Commission meeting on February 25, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   __________ 
Paul Hinkle, Chair 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 

 

 

 
 

TO: Clovis Planning Commission 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: February 25, 2021 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval, Res. 21-___, CUP2021-001, A conditional use 
permit request to allow for the increase of the R-3 Zone District 
standard building height of 2 ½ stories (no greater than 35 feet) to 3 
stories (no greater than 35 feet) for proposed multifamily buildings on 
property located at 1703  De Wolf Avenue. Bottom Line Group LLC, 
Sachdeva Mickey Etal, property owners; Jay Virk, Bottom Line Group 
LLC, applicant.  

Staff: Lily Cha, Associate Planner 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Conditions of Approval 
2. Applicant’s Development Statement 
3. Conceptual Site Plan 
4. Conceptual Elevations 

 5. Comments from Agencies  
 6. Draft Resolution 
  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve Conditional Use Permit 2021-001, 
subject to the conditions of approval included as Attachment 1. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 60-unit, high density multiple family project on the 2.60 
acre subject property shown below in Figure 1. In order to meet the required high-density range 
and R-3 Zone District development standards, the applicant is seeking approval of this 
conditional use permit to allow for a third story for the multifamily buildings.  
 

 
 
 

R E P O R T  T O  T H E  P L A N N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 
 

FIGURE 1 
Project Location 

 

 
 
BACKGROUND 

 General Plan Designation: High Density Residential (15.1-25 DU/Ac) 

 Specific Plan Designation: High Density Residential (15.1-25 DU/Ac) 

 Existing Zoning: R-3  

 Lot Size: 2.60 

 Current Land Use: Rural Residential Home and Accessory Structure 

 Adjacent Land Uses:  
o North: Rural Residential Single Family Home 
o South: Rural Residential Single Family Home 
o East: Jefferson Canal / Rural Residential  
o West: Single Family Residential Subdivision 

 Previous Entitlements: RO295 & R2017-07 
 

The subject property was annexed into the City in 2017 as a part of the Shaw-Leonard Northwest 

Reorganization RO295. The annexation incorporated into the City approximately 77 acres of 

property, primarily within the Loma Vista Community Centers Master Plan area. The subject 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 
 

property is one of the few properties incorporated into the City’s limits under RO295 that is not 

a part of the Community Master Plan area.  

PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 
Development Proposal 
The applicant is proposing to develop a 60-unit, high density multiple family project on 
approximately 2.60 acres of property located at 1703 De Wolf Avenue in the City of Clovis. The 
subject property is generally located on the east side of De Wolf Avenue and north of Shaw 
Avenue, within the Loma Vista Community. At completion, the Project will provide market rate 
housing with two and three-bedroom units.  
 
The Project has been conceptually designed with five multifamily buildings, each 
accommodating 12 units. Overall, the project will provide 48 two-bedroom units and 12 three-
bedroom units. The site will also include a total of 132 required parking stalls including 66 
covered and 66 uncovered stalls, meeting the parking standard for each unit proposed. 
Additionally, the Project will provide ample open space, integrating over 600 square feet of open 
and common areas per unit. Also incorporated into the Project’s design is a centrally located 
5,064 square foot children’s play area.  
 
Land Use Consistency 
As a high density multifamily residential development, the Project is a permitted land use under 
the City’s R-3 Zone District and General Plan designation. The City’s General Plan designates 
the subject property as High Density Residential, allowing for multifamily development with 
densities of 15.1 to 25 dwelling units per acre. At 2.6 acres, the subject property may develop 
between 39 and 65 units. Consequently, the Project falls within the density requirement with 60 
units proposed. The Project has also been designed to meet the required multifamily high density 
R-3 Zone District development standards. With the exception of this over height request, the 
conceptual project design is consistent with the development standards of the R-3 Zone District 
and the Loma Vista Specific Plan.  
 
Over Height Request 
The development standards for the R-3 Zone District specify a two-tiered height requirement. 
Projects may incorporate a maximum of 2½ stories, and they must comply with a 35’ overall 
building height limit. While the Clovis Development Code does not define a “half-story,” the term 
may be generally viewed as usable living space above a finished story, enclosed within a sloping 
roof. Half-stories often incorporate the use of dormer windows for lighting. Under the provisions 
of the R-3 Zone District, the opportunity for buildings to exceed 2½ stories or the 35’ maximum 
height limit may be considered and approved through the conditional use permit process.  
 
Through this conditional use permit, the applicant is requesting to deviate from the R-3 Zone 
District’s maximum height requirement of 2½-stories, no greater than 35-feet. In this case, the 
applicant is requesting to allow for a maximum building height of 3-stories, no greater than 35-
feet. The project proposes 3-story buildings with an overall height of 33-feet, 2-inches. Although 
the number of stories will increase by half of a story, the overall height does not exceed the 35-
foot maximum standard of the zone district. Additionally, the site provides constraints for the 
development at the density proposed by the applicant. In order to meet development standards 
while providing the proposed high density unit numbers, a full third story is required to facilitate 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 
 

the Project. In light of the aforementioned points, staff has no objection to the proposal and 
recommends approval of the over height request.    
 
Review and Comments from Agencies 
The Project was distributed to all City Departments as well as outside agencies, including 
Caltrans, Clovis Unified School District, Fresno Irrigation District, Fresno Metropolitan Flood 
Control District, the County of Fresno Department of Public Health, AT&T, PG&E, San Joaquin 
Valley Air Pollution Control District, and the State Department of Fish and Wildlife.  
 
Comments received are attached only if the agency has provided concerns, conditions, or 
mitigation measures. Routine responses and comment letters are placed in the administrative 
record and provided to the applicant for their records.  
 
Public Comments 
A public notice was sent to area residents within 300 feet of the property boundaries. Staff has 
not received any inquiries prior to the finalization of the staff report.  
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
The City has determined that this Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public Resources 
Code Section 21084 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15332 (Class 32 – Infill Development 
Projects) and that the exceptions identified under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 would not 
be triggered as a result of the Project.  
 
Projects that satisfy the requirements of a categorical exemption have been determined to not 
have a significant effect on the environment and do not require further review. Under the Class 
32 categorical exemption, a project is exempt from CEQA if the project: (a) is consistent with the 
applicable land use designation, General Plan policies, and zoning; (b) is within city limits on a 
project site of no more than five (5) acres substantially surrounded with urban uses; (c) is located 
on a site with no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; (d) would not 
result in significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, and water quality; and (e) is located 
on a site that can be adequately served by all utilities. The Project satisfies all the requirements 
of the Class 32 categorical exemption.  
 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 precludes use of a categorical exemption if a project will 
result in cumulative impacts, significant effects due to unusual circumstances, damage to scenic 
resources, is located on or within the vicinity of a hazardous waste site, and/or the potential to 
negatively impact a historical resources. Based on staff’s review, the Project will not result in 
these conditions and would not be triggered and the Section 15300.2 exception will not preclude 
use of Class 32 categorical exemption.   
 
A Notice of Exemption has been completed. Staff will file the notice with the County Clerk if the 
Project is approved.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed conditional use permit is consistent with the goals and policies of the General 
Plan, Loma Vista Specific Plan and Development Code. Staff, therefore, recommends that the 

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 
 

Planning Commission approve CUP2021-001, subject to the conditions of approval attached as 
Attachment 1.  
 
The findings to consider when making a decision on conditional use permit applications include:  
 

1. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity and 
character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the applicable 
provisions of this Development Code. This finding is based on the following: 

 

 The proposed use is a permitted use for the property zoning (R-3: High Density 
Multifamily Residential) with over height exceptions subjected to a conditional 
use permit. 

 The conditions for approval preserve the integrity and character of the zoning 
district and ensure compliance with the Development Code.  

 
2. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific plan. 

This finding is based on the following: 
 

 As outlined in the General Plan and the Loma Vista Specific Plan, the property 
is designated as High Density Residential, allowing for the R-3 Zone District. 

 
3. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 

compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant noise, 
traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other 
allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City. This finding is based on the following: 

 

 The property is surrounded by existing rural residential type single-family 
residences and larger properties and future high density residential 
classifications.  

 The conditions for approval mitigate significant noise, traffic, or other conditions 
or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other allowed uses. 

 
4. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 

density/intensity of use being proposed. This finding is based on the following: 
 

 The property allows the Project to be developed to the standards of the zone 
district and development code.  

 
5. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities and 

services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health and 
safety. This finding is based on the following: 

 

 The Project proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation and 
surrounded by developed areas. There are no concerns related to public utilities 
and services. 

 

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 
 

6. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no potential significant 
negative effects upon environmental quality and natural resources. This finding is based 
on the following:  

 

 As identified above under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
heading of this staff report, the Project has been reviewed in compliance with 
CEQA, the Project was determined to be categorically exempt pursuant to Class 
32 CEQA exemption, and therefore the Project will not have a significant effect 
on the environment and does not require further review.   

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
If approved, the project will continue with site plan review.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING 
Property owners within 300 feet notified:  44 
Interested individuals notified:   10 
 

 

 Prepared by:  Lily Cha, Associate Planner 

 

 

 Reviewed by:  ______________________________ 

    Dave Merchen 

    City Planner 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
CUP2021-001 

 
PLANNING DIVISION CONDITIONS 

(Lily Cha, Associate Planner, Division Representative – (559) 324-2335) 
 
1. This Conditional Use Permit approves the building height of 3 stories, no greater than 

35 feet overall for property located at 1703 De Wolf in Clovis CA.  
 
2. This Conditional Use Permit is not transferable to another location. 
 
3. A separate Site Plan Review (SPR) and approval shall be required prior to the 

construction of any structures and/or prior to any site modifications and shall comply 
with development standards prescribed for the High Density Residential land use 
designation, R-3 (High Density Multifamily Residential) Zone District, and other 
applicable standards as determined by the Planning Division during the SPR review 
process. 

 

4. The applicant shall consult with the City of Clovis Building Division on any building 
code requirements.  

 
FRESNO IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

(Chris Lundeen, FID Department Representative – (559) 233-7161 ext. 7410) 
 

5. The applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno Irrigation District correspondence.  If 
the list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of requirements. 
 

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT 
(Robert Villalobos, FMFCD Department Representative – (559) 456-3292) 

 
6. The applicant shall refer to the attached Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District 

correspondence.  If the list is not attached, please contact the District for the list of 
requirements. 
 
 

 
 
 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

DeWolf Avenue Multiple-Family 

DEVELOPMENT STATEMENT 

1703 N DeWolf Avenue 

APN 554-053-41 

 

Bottom Line Development Group proposes to develop a 60-unity High Density Multiple 
Family Project on 2.60 Acres of property generally located on the east side of DeWolf 
Avenue north of Shaw Avenue. The Project is intended to provide an attractive residential 
environment close in proximity to the Loma Vista commercial development known as the 
Urban Center North. The Project is designed to complement single family housing in the 
area by providing housing diversity to the area. The Project, when completed, will provide 
market rate housing in comfortable 2 and 3-bedroom units that offers various levels of 
housing needs.  
 
The site will include 132 parking stalls which meets the parking ratio required for each 
unit per the City’s Development Code.  
 
Space within the Project is designed to be both functional and multi-faceted, with strong 
attention to the family environment, providing open space above and beyond the required 
260 square feet per unit. The Project integrates over 600 square feet of open and common 
areas per unit to provide a more cohesive neighborhood environment. Exteriors of 
buildings will utilize high quality materials such as wood corbels, Spanish tile roofs, 
decorative wrought iron guardrails and gable ends, and Spanish styled wall sconces that 
will be complementary to existing neighboring residential development. The Project 
incorporates significant Loma Vista elements as the area transitions into the Urban Center 
North environment.  
 
A key aspect of the development is that in order to meet the required High-density range, 
R-3 Zone District requirements, and provide the required off-street parking, a third story 
was needed to facilitate the Project. The Project encompasses five (5) 3-story buildings 
with building heights that do not exceed 33 feet 2 inches. The Development Code permits 
building heights of 35-feet or 2 ½ stories, whichever is less. Additionally, the recently 
adopted Multiple Family Objective Standards permits building heights to not exceed those 
heights permitted in the R-3 Zone District, therefore the requested third-story exception 
technically falls within the respected height allowances of the District. Moreover, the 
actual buildings have a 27-foot maximum height, and the requested over-height is for the 
construction of the 4/12 pitched roofs which are compatible and consistent with 
surrounding area development. Subsequently, in order to provide the expansive open 
space and common areas we feel is important to the development and the area, it 
necessitated 3-story development in order to avoid the massing of buildings to reach 
density and parking requirements.  
 
Consequently, the Project falls in line with the General Plan, previous zoning actions, and 
its adopted principles in meeting the classification for a Class 32 Exemption, i.e., in-fill 
development on a site less than five acres. The Project is consistent with the applicable 
General Plan, its policies, and the applicable zoning designation and the request does 

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 
 

 

not modify any of the required developments standards and requirements already set in 
place for Loma Vista, nor does the Project deviate from density or general land use 
requirements of the Ordinance. The project simply proposes development consistent with 
existing the R-3 Zone District and the High-density designation of the approved Loma 
Vista Plan.  
 
 
 

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



10

20

10

27

8

27 27

15

10

10

10

20

27

20

10

27

27

10

20

20

33

27

34

10

20

27

10

19

20

27

20

46

20

10

10

27

27

10
56

10

58

10 11 2710 20

27

20

20

6462

20

20

BUILDING 1
UNIT - A

BUILDING 2
UNIT - A

BUILDING 3
UNIT - B

27

10

20

27

BUILDING 5
UNIT - B

19

55

1020

27

10 23

27

10

BUILDING 4
UNIT - C

10

106
107

108
109

110
111

112
113

114

96979899100101102103104105

4647484950515253545556575859606162

12
13

14
15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28

2930313233343536373839404142434445

63
64

65
66

67
68

69
70

71
72

73

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11

11
5

11
6

11
7

11
8

11
9

12
0

121
122

123
124

125
126

127
128

129
130

131
132

878889909192939495

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81

82
83

84
85

86

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1"=20'

26'-0"
WIDE

APPROACH

26'-0"

26
'-0

"

26'-0"
WIDE

APPROACH

26
'-0

"

TR
AS

H
EN

C
LO

SU
R

E

TR
ASH

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

TRASH

ENCLO
SURE

26'-0"

COMMON
OPEN AREA

COMMON
OPEN AREA

COMMON
OPEN AREA

CHILDREN
PLAY AREA

CHILDREN
PLAY AREA

20
'-0

"
M

IN
.

9'-0"
MIN.

COMMON
OPEN AREA

26
'-9

 1
/2

"

PLANTER

PL
AN

TE
R

PL
AN

TE
R

PLA
N

TER

PLANTER

DE WOLF AVENUE

4'
-0

"

8'
-0

"
11

'-0
"

34
'-0

"

℄

ADJACENT PARCEL
(RESIDENTIAL)

ADJACENT PARCEL
(RESIDENTIAL)

ADJACENT PARCEL
(RESIDENTIAL)

ADJACENT PARCEL
(RESIDENTIAL)

6'
-0

"

SI008 SI008

SI008

SI008

SI008

SI008

SI008

SI022

SI022

SI022

SI023

SI023

SI023

SI023

SI120

SI120

SI002

SI020

SI020

SI020

SI120

SI175

SI175 SI175

SI175

SI175

SI175

SI006 SI006SI001 SI002 SI002

SI012

SI012

SI012

SI012

SI012

SI012

SI012

SI014

SI014

SI014

SI014

SI014

SI014

SI014

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151

SI151 SI151

SI024

SI007

SI007

SI007

SI007

SI007

SI023

SI153

SI049

SI049

SI069

SI069 SI178

SI026

SI026

SI159

SI150

SI188

SI188

SI189

SI189

SI177

SI026

SI026

SI177

SI177

87

15

16

17

26

27

21

22

23

31

16

2722

32

28 32 17 33

15 2621 31
16 2722 31

27 22 1733
26 21 1632

1533 2328

17 23 28 32

1526 2131

1533 2328

SI189

87

87

SI190

SI190

86'-0"

15
2'

-0
"

60'-0"

30
'-0

"

272'-0"

28
8'

-0
"

320'-6"

22
4'

-0
"

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

THESE DRAWINGS, DESIGNS SKETCHES, IDEAS, DOCUMENTS,  PLANS,
ARRANGEMENTS, AND OTHER INFORMATION  CONTAINED THEREIN, ARE THE SOLE
AND EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  THESE DOCUMENTS
ARE DELIVERED AND ACCEPTED BY YOU IN  TRUST AND ON THE EXPRESS
CONDITION THAT NEITHER THESE DOCUMENTS OR THE INFORMATION CONTAINED
THEREIN WILL BE COPIED, REPRODUCED, OR DELIVERED  TO OTHERS, EXCEPT AS
SPECIFICALLY INSTRUCTED BY MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  NO REPRODUCED
COPIES (SEPIAS, PHOTO, ETC.) SHALL BE PRODUCED, MADE OR DISTRIBUTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
NOTHING CONTAINED OR  REPRESENTED ON THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE USED
BY OR  DISCLOSED TO ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION FOR  ANY PURPOSE
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
THESE DOCUMENTS AND ALL COPIES WILL BE RETURNED TO MIKE DE ALBA &
ASSOCIATES. UPON REQUEST, VIOLATORS WILL BE  PROSECUTED TO THE FULL
EXTENT OF THE LAW.

©

REVISIONS

DE ALBA ARCHITECTURE
5129 N. FIRST STREET FRESNO
CALIFORNIA 93710
PHONE: 559-225-2800
FAX:       559-225-1122

MIKE DE ALBA, JR.
ARCHITECT

2020 MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES

OWNER:

DRAWINGS PREPARED FOR:

CONTRACTOR:

ARCHITECT'S SEAL

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO.
4-Jan-21

SHEET TITLE

PLOT TIME: 1/4/2021 9:45 AM

DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB# :

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

SITE PLAN

OVERALL SITE PLAN

A-001
200602

CHRISTINE
MD

SITE KEY NOTES
# DESCRIPTION
SI001 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER PER CITY OF CLOVIS PUBLIC WORKS

STANDARDS DRAWING.
SI002 CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER CITY OF CLOVIS PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS

DRAWING
SI005 CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER PER CITY OF CLOVIS PUBLIC WORKS

STANDARDS.
SI006 DRIVEWAY APPROACH PER CITY OF CLOVIS PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS.
SI007 ON-SITE LIGHTING: 20'-0" HIGH LIGHT POLE W/400-WATT LIGHT(S).
SI008 DIRECTIONAL ARROW PAINTED ON PAVING TYPICAL AS INDICATED ON PLANS.
SI012 PARKING LOT ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING OVER PREPARED BASE PER CITY

OF CLOVIS PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS.
SI014 6'-0' HIGH CONCRETE BLOCK WALL AT PROPERTY LINE PER CITY OF CLOVIS

PUBLIC WORKS STANDARDS.
SI017 8'-0" WIDE ACCESSIBLE UNLOADING SPACE WITH WARPED CONCRETE

WHEELCHAIR RAMP AND STRIPING TO COMPLY WITH THE TITLE 24
ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS.

SI018 "ACCESSIBLE PARKING ONLY" SIGN POLE MOUNTED AT +80" ABOVE CURB
WITH "VAN ACCESSIBLE" SIGNAGE BELOW PER TITLE 24 ACCESSIBILITY
STANDARDS.

SI020 6" CONCRETE CURB ROUND-DOWN TO FINISH GRADE OF BACK OF WALK.
SI021 CONCRETE CURB RAMP-MEDIUM BROOM FINISH.  MAX. 1:12 SLOPE WITH

TRUNCATED DOMES LOCATED AT THE BOTTOM OF THE SLOPE.
SI022 LOCATION OF 6'-0" HIGH SPLIT FACED CONCRETE MASONRY TRASH

ENCLOSURE. PROVIDE 6'-0" HIGH METAL GATES.
SI023 PLANTING AND IRRIGATION.  SEE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL

INFORMATION.
SI024 MONUMENT SIGN W/BASE.  SIGN PORTION PROVIDED BY SIGN CONTRACTOR.
SI025 LOOP TYPE BIKE RACK SET IN CONCRETE BASE.  PROVIDE SPACE FOR 3

BIKES, MIN.
SI026 ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS, SIGNAGE, UNLOADING AISLE, AND RAMPS.

VERIFY COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT ACCESSIBILITY CODE.
SI049 30'-0"X30'- 0" VISIBILITY TRIANGLE TO HAVE NO ENCROACHMENTS OVER 3'-0"

IN HEIGHT WITHIN ITS PERIMETERS.
SI069 PROVIDE A 48" WIDE MARKED CROSSING (CROSSWALK) TO IDENTIFY A PATH

INTENDED FOR PEDESTRIAN USE IN CROSSING A VEHICULAR WAY.
CROSSWALK SHALL BE PAINTED WITH 3" WIDE STRIPES AT 36" O.C. WITH
WHITE TRAFFIC PAINT.

SI150 MAIL-BOX.
SI151 BRACED SINGLE POST CARPORT/SOLAR PANEL SUPPORT.  PROVIDE 8’-2” MIN.

VERTICAL CLEAR HEIGHT DIMENSION.  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SHOP
DRAWING AND ENGINEERING FOR DEFERRED APPROVAL.

SI153 6’-0” TALL PAINTED WROUGHT IRON FENCE.  REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL SITE
DETAILS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  GATE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE
SHOP DRAWINGS AND ENGINEERING FOR DEFERRED APPROVAL.

SI154 4’-0” WIDE BY 6’-0” TALL PAINTED WROUGHT IRON FIRE DEPARTMENT MAN
GATE.

SI159 FIRE LANES.  CURB EXPOSED FACES (OR ON PAVING WHERE NO CURB IS
SHOWN BUT DASHED LINE IS SHOWN ON PLAN) SHALL BE PAINTED RED WITH
WHITE PAINTED TEXT, STATING “NO PARKING FIRE LANE”—TEXT TO BE
PAINTED WHITE ) 4” HIGH LETTERING WITH I” STROKES) OCCURING
APPROXIMATELY EVERY 25’-0” AND AS PER CLOVIS FIRE DEPARTMENT
STADARD #7.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO PROVIDE DRIVEWAY
ENTRANCE SIGNAGE IDENTIFYING FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS AS
SHOWN ON THIS SHEET.

SI162 12” HIGH LETTERS PAINTED TRAFFIC WHITE STATING “RESIDENT” AS SHOWN.
THE FOLLOWING CHARACTERS SHALL BE PAINTED IN SUCH A MANNER THAT
THE LOWER EDGE OF THE WORD ALIGNS WITH THE END OF THE STALLS
STRIPING AND IS VISIBLE BENEATH THE PARKED VEHICLE.

SI163 12” HIGH LETTERS PAINTED TRAFFIC WHITE STATING “VISITOR” AS SHOWN.
THE FOLLOWING CHARACTERS SHALL BE PAINTED IN SUCH A MANNER THAT
THE LOWER EDGE OF THE WORD ALIGNS WITH THE END OF THE STALLS
STRIPPING AND IS VISIBLE BENEATH THE PARKED VEHICLE.

SI175 CONCRETE FLATWORK (5% MAXIMUM SLOPE WITH 2% MAXIMUM CROSS
SLOPE).

SI176 4” WIDE STRIPING PAINTED TRAFFIC WHITE.
SI177 STRIPING AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALL(S).  ALL PERIMETER / BOARDER

STRIPING OF UNLOAD ZONE SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE.  INFILL AND PARKING
STRIPING SHALL BE PAINTED WHITE (INFILL STRIPING SHALL BE 45 DEGREES
AND 36” O.C. MAXIMUM WITHIN “NO PARKING” ZONE).  2% MAXIMUM SLOPE IN
ALL DIRECTIONS AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS AND ACCESS AISLES.

SI178 12” HIGH LETTERS PAINTED TRAFFIC WHITE STATING “NO PARKING” AS
SHOWN.

SI188 INSTALL 17”X22” SIGN WITH TEXT AS FOLLOWS: “WARNING: VEHICLES
STOPPED, PARKED OR LEFT STANDING IN FIRE LANES WILL BE IMMEDIATELY
REMOVED AT OWNER’S EXPENSE.”

SI189 BARBECUE PIT
SI190 PLAY STRUCTURE

BUILDING HEIGHT ANALYSIS
OCCUPANCY

TYPE: R-2 U
ALLOWABLE

HEIGHT (WITHOUT
INCREASE):

THREE
STORIES

65'-0"

THREE
STORIES

85'-0"

BUILDING AREA ANALYSIS
ALLOWABLE AREA

OCCUPANCY
TYPE: At(sf) F P W Ia If(<0.75) Aa

R-2 7,000 192 256 30.00 2 0.50 24,500
U 5,500 60 60 30.00 0 0.75 9,625

NOTES
F = BUILDING PERIMETER HAVING GREATER THAN 20'-0" OPEN SPACE.
P = ENTIRE PERIMETER OF BUILDING (FEET).
W = WIDTH OF PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE (FEET) = (L1xW1 + L2xW2 +L3xW3.....) /F
Ln = LENGTH OF A PORTION OF THE EXTERIOR WALL (FEET).
Wn = WIDTH OF PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE ASSOCIATED WITH THAT PORTION OF
THE EXTERIOR PERIMETER WALL (GREATER THAN 20 FEET).
A = ACTUAL AREA (SQUARE FEET).
At = MAXIMUM AREA ALLOWED (SQUARE FEET).
Aa = ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR (SQUARE FEET).
Ia = NUMBER OF BUILDING STORIES ABOVE GRADE PLANE , NOT TO EXCEED THREE.
If = AREA FACTOR INCREASE DUE TO FRONTAGE (SQUARE FEET) = (F / P-0.25) x (W / 30)
Aa = [At+(AtxLf) + (AtxLf)]

CASE I (ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR - GROUND FLOOR)
OCCUPANCY

TYPE: A Ia Aa RATIO
<1.0

R-2 3,801 2 49,000 0.08
U 1,600 1 9,625 0.17

CASE I (ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR - 2ND AND 3RD
FLOOR)

OCCUPANCY
TYPE: A Ia Aa RATIO

<1.0
R-2 7,602 2 49,000 0.16
U 0 0 0 0.00

CASE II (TOTAL BUILDING ALLOWABLE AREA)
OCCUPANCY

TYPE: A Ia Aa RATIO
<2.0

R-2 11,403 2 49,000 0.23
U 1,600 0 0 0.00

PROJECT TEAM LIST
ARCHITECT: DE ALBA ARCHITECTURE - MIKE DE ALBA

ADDRESS: 5129 NORTH FIRST STREET FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 93710

OFFICE: (559) 225-2800 FAX: 559-225-2800
OWNER: JAY VIRK / BOTTOM LINE

ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 1095 CLOVIS, CA. 93613

OFFICE: (559) 286 - 6205 FAX: (559) 314 - 6123

PARKING CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED PARKING

BUILDINGS UNITS PER
BUILDING

TOTAL
UNITS

STALLS
PER UNIT

REQUIRED
STALLS

4 12 48 2 96
1 12 12 3 36

REQUIRED ACCESSIBLE PARKING
CARPORT
SPACES

REQUIRED
CARPORT

GARAGE
SPACES

REQUIRED
GARAGES

OPEN
SPACES

REQUIRED
OPEN

RESIDENT 66 1 0 0 60 1

VISITOR 0 0 0 0 60 1

PROVIDED PARKING
CARPORT RESIDENT / COMMON USE VEHICLE PARKING: 66

CARPORT ACCESSIBLE RESIDENT / COMMON USE VEHICLE PARKING 66
GARAGE RESIDENT STANDARD VEHICLE PARKING: 0

GARAGE RESIDENT ACCESSIBLE VEHICLE PARKING: 0
OPEN RESIDENT / COMMON USE STANDARD VEHICLE PARKING: 0

OPEN VISITOR STANDARD VEHICLE OPEN PARKING; 0
CARPORT VISITOR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLE OPEN PARKING: 0

TOTAL: 132

SHADE TREE TABLE
ONE TREE ON SITE PER TWO REQUIRED PARKING

STALLS
PARKING STALLS ON SITE: 132
TREES PROVIDED ON-SITE: 66

PARKING LOT AREA TO BE 50% SHADED WITHIN 15
YEARS

PARKING LOT AREA: 48,840
50% TO BE SHADED: 24,420

QTY TYPE OF
TREE

AREA OF
TREE TOTAL AREA OF TREES

17
CHINESE
PISTACHE 490 8,330

17 LONDON PLANE 490 8,330

16
SAW LEAF
ZELKOVA 490 7,840

16 CRAPE MYRTLE 490 7,840

TOTAL SHADE PROVIDED 32,340

VICINITY MAP

TREE, PLANT, AND SHRUB TABLE
TREES

SYM. SIZE SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME QTY.
10 15 - GAL. LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA

'DYNAMITE'
CRAPE MYRTLE (RED) 15

19 15 - GAL. PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'KEITH
DAVIES' CHINESE PISTACHE 15

20 15 - GAL. PLATANUS X ACERIFOLIA
AND CVS. LONDON PLANE 15

27 15 - GAL. ZELKOVA SERRATA SAW LEAF ZELKOVA 15
TOTAL 60

SHRUBS
SYM. SIZE SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME QTY.

15 5 - GAL. DIETES BICOLOR FORTNIGHT LILY 20

16 5 - GAL. CALLISTEMON CITRINUS
'LITTLE JOHN' DWARF BOTTLE BRUSH 20

17 5 - GAL. EUONYMUS JAPONICUS EVERGREEN EUONYMUS 20
21 5 - GAL. LANTANA X. 'NEW GOLD' NEW GOLD LANTANA 20

22 5 - GAL. LANTANA SELLOWIANA
'MONMA' WHITE LIGHTNIN' LANTANA 20

23 5 - GAL. LAURUS NOBILIS BAY LAUREL 20
26 5 - GAL. RHAPHIOLEPIS UMBELLATA YEDDO HAWTHORNE 20
27 5 - GAL. ROSA CARPET ROSE 20
28 5 - GAL. ROSA FLORIBUNDA FLORIBUNDA ROSE 20

31 5 - GAL. SALVIA LEUCANTHA 'SANTA
BARBARA' MEXICAN BUSH SAGE 20

32 5 - GAL. TEUCRIUM CHAMAEDRYS GERMANDER 20
33 5 - GAL. TULBAGHIA VIOLACEA SOCIETY GARLIC 20

TOTAL 240

SOD
SYM. SIZE SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME QTY.

87 TALL FESCUE
NOTES:

1.)  PLANT LIST IS PROVIDED FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY AND
INSTALL QUANTITIES.  CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY AND INSTALL QUANTITIES AS SHOWN ON
PLAN.
2.)  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE AND PLACE 2" OF SHREDDED BARK MULCH IN ALL PLANTED
AREAS.
3.)  NO TREES OR SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED ADJACENT TO FIRE DEPARTMENT
CONNECTIONS.  SEE CIVIL PLANS FOR LOCATIONS.
4.)  ALL TREES WITHIN 15' OF LEACH FIELDS TO BE PLANTED IN DEEP ROOT PLANTERS.

##

PROJECT DATA
OWNER INFORMATION

OWNER
INFORMATION: JAY VIRK

ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 1095
CLOVIS, CA. 93613

PHONE NUMBER: 559-286-6205

SITE DATA
SITE ADDRESS: 1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS, CA. 93619

APN: 554-053-41
LEGAL

DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT
DESCRIPTION:

TWENTY FOUR  TWO-BEDROOM, TWO-BATH APARTMENTS
TWENTY FOUR TWO-BEDROOM, ONE-BATH APARTMENTS.
TWELVE THREE-BEDROOM, TWO-BATH APARTMENTS.

VEHICLE
PARKING
ANLYSIS:

SIXTY SIX COVERED STANDARD AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS.
SIXTY SIX OPEN STANDARD AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS.  ONE
HUNDRED THIRTY TWO TOTAL PARKING STALLS PROVIDED

BIKE PARKING
ANLYSIS:

ONE LONG TERM STALL.
TWO SHORT TERM STALLS.
THREE TOTAL PARKING STALLS PROVIDED

EXISTING USE: VACANT
PROPOSED USE: MULTI-FAMILY APARTMENT COMPLEX

EXISTING
PARCEL: 1

ZONIING: R-3

LOT AREA: 113,256 SQUARE FEET = 2.60 ACRES

GENERAL PLAN: HIGH DENSITY

 PRIVATE AND
COMMON AREAS:

10,692 + 20,312 = 31,004 SQUARE FEET
(15,600 SQUARE FEET MINMUM)

CHILDREN PLAY
AREAS: 5,064 SQUARE FEET (600 SQUARE FEET MINIMUM)

BUILDING DATA
OCCUPANCY

GROUP; R-2 (RESIDENTIAL)

OCCUPANCY
GROUP: U (CARPORT)

CONSTRUCTION
TYPE; VB AT R-2

CONSTRUCTION
TYPE; IIB AT U

NUMBER OF
STORIES: THREE STORY

BUILDING
HEIGHT: 33'-2"

FIRE
SPRINKLERED: YES

NFPA 13 (FOR AREA INCREASE)

NPA 13R

FIRE ALARM: YES

BUILDING
NUMBER APARTMENT UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT

TYPE
1 2-BEDROOM/1-BATH APARTMENT.   820 sq. ft. A

2 2-BEDROOM/1-BATH APARTMENT.   820 sq. ft. A
3 2-BEDROOM/2-BATH APARTMENT    772 sq. ft. B

4 3-BEDROOM/2-BATH APARTMENT    1,135 sq. ft. C
5 2-BEDROOM/2-BATH APARTMENT.   772 sq. ft. B

BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A' AREA CALCULATION
GROUND FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/1-BATH) 3,327

R-2 PRIVATE PATIO BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON PATIO BUILDING AREA: 160
TOTAL GROUND FLOOR AREA: 3,801

SECOND FLOOR AREA:
R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/1-BATH) 3,327

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL SECOND FLOOR AREA: 3,801
THIRD FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/1-BATH) 3,327

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL THIRD FLOOR AREA: 3,801
TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 11,403

TOTAL BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A' AREA 34,209

BUILDINGS 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B' AREA CALCULATION
GROUND FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,130

R-2 PRIVATE PATIO BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON PATIO BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL GROUND FLOOR AREA: 3,604
SECOND FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,130

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL SECOND FLOOR AREA: 3,604
THIRD FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,130

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 314

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL THIRD FLOOR AREA: 3,604
TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 10,812

TOTAL BUILDINGS 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B' AREA 32,436

BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C' AREA CALCULATION
GROUND FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,135

R-2 PRIVATE PATIO BUILDING AREA: 263

R-2 COMMON PATIO BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL GROUND FLOOR AREA: 3,558
SECOND FLOOR AREA:

R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,130

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 263

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160
TOTAL SECOND FLOOR AREA: 3,553

THIRD FLOOR AREA:
R-2 DWELLING BUILDING AREA: (2-BEDROOM/2-BATH) 3,130

R-2 PRIVATE DECK BUILDING AREA: 263

R-2 COMMON DECK BUILDING AREA: 160

TOTAL THIRD FLOOR AREA: 3,553
TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 10,665

TOTAL BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C' AREA 31,996

ATTACHMENT 3
19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



FRONT ELEVATION BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A'
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

0'-0"

± 0'-4"

± 9'-4"

± 8'-4"

± 33'-2"

12

4

12

4

EE001

EE084 EE028

EE256

EE250

EE078

EE070

EE248

± 8'-0"

± 8'-0"

± 9'-4"

EE154

EE260

EE256

BACK ELEVATION BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE001

EE028

EE260

EE250

EE154

EE078

EE048

EE084EE256

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE258

EE261

EE260

EE001
EE028

EE250EE135

EE078

EE048

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE258

EE261

EE260

EE001
EE028

EE250EE135

EE078

EE048

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

THESE DRAWINGS, DESIGNS SKETCHES, IDEAS, DOCUMENTS,  PLANS,
ARRANGEMENTS, AND OTHER INFORMATION  CONTAINED THEREIN, ARE THE SOLE
AND EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  THESE DOCUMENTS
ARE DELIVERED AND ACCEPTED BY YOU IN  TRUST AND ON THE EXPRESS
CONDITION THAT NEITHER THESE DOCUMENTS OR THE INFORMATION CONTAINED
THEREIN WILL BE COPIED, REPRODUCED, OR DELIVERED  TO OTHERS, EXCEPT AS
SPECIFICALLY INSTRUCTED BY MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  NO REPRODUCED
COPIES (SEPIAS, PHOTO, ETC.) SHALL BE PRODUCED, MADE OR DISTRIBUTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
NOTHING CONTAINED OR  REPRESENTED ON THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE USED
BY OR  DISCLOSED TO ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION FOR  ANY PURPOSE
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
THESE DOCUMENTS AND ALL COPIES WILL BE RETURNED TO MIKE DE ALBA &
ASSOCIATES. UPON REQUEST, VIOLATORS WILL BE  PROSECUTED TO THE FULL
EXTENT OF THE LAW.

©

REVISIONS

DE ALBA ARCHITECTURE
5129 N. FIRST STREET FRESNO
CALIFORNIA 93710
PHONE: 559-225-2800
FAX:       559-225-1122

MIKE DE ALBA, JR.
ARCHITECT

2020 MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES

OWNER:

DRAWINGS PREPARED FOR:

CONTRACTOR:

ARCHITECT'S SEAL

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO.
30-Dec-20

SHEET TITLE

PLOT TIME: 12/30/2020 4:35 PM

DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB# :

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

BUILDINGS 1 & 2 - UNIT 'A'

A-300
200602

CHRISTINE
MD

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY
NOTES

# DESCRIPTION
EE001 3-COAT STUCCO FINISH O/PAPER BACKED WIRE MESH O/2 LAYERS OF TYPE

'D' PAPER O/BUILDING SHEATHING.  PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS WHERE
SHOWN AND GSM WEEP SCREED AT BASE.  PROVIDE LIGHT SAND TEXTURE.

EE028 EXTERIOR WALL LIGHT FIXTURE.
EE070 7/8" STUCCO FINISH O/1" FOAM BOARD.
EE078 DUAL GLAZED WINDOWS.
EE084 SUPPORT POSTS AT 48" O.C. W/INTERMEDIATE MEMBERS AT 4" O.C. AND

HANDRAILS SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 1-1/2" NOR MORE THAN 2" IN CROSS
SECTION DIAMETER.  R ORNAMENTAL DESIGN SUCH THAT NO OBJECT 4" IN
DIAMETER CAN PASS THROUGH.

EE135 CONTINUOUS GALVANIZED SHEET METAL GUTTER AT PERIMETER
OVERHANGS (PAINT TO MATCH FASCIA).  PROVIDE GALVANIZED SHEET
METAL DOWNSPOUT (PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL) W/CONCRETE
SPLASH BLOCKS AT GRADE.  ALL DOWNSPOUTS SHALL DRAIN INTO
PLANTERS/LANDSCAPE AREAS.  PROVIDE DRAIN SYSTEM SO THAT NO
RUNOFF FLOWS OVER WALKWAYS.

EE154 EPS KEYSTONE.
EE181 HOLLOW METAL SHAPE GUARDRAIL.
EE248 FOAM MOLDING BELLY BAND.
EE250 SPANISH TILE ROOF (OWNER TO SELECT) OVER 30# FELT UNDERLAYMENT

OVER PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING.
EE255 WOOD CORBEL
EE256 WROUGHT IRON GUARDRAIL
EE258 DECORATIVE VINYL SHUTTERS
EE260 GABLE END DECORATIVE VENTS WITH DECORATIVE IRON
EE261 EXPANSION JOINT

COLOR MATERIAL SCHEDULE
SYM MATERIAL: FINISH: COLOR:

1 STUCCO FINISH DASH CREAM

2 STUCCO EAVE DASH CREAM

3 STUCCO TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

5 GLAZING CLEAR CLEAR

7 ROOFING TILE FACTORY FINISH RED

11 EXTERIOR METAL
DOOR

PAINTED DARK BROWN

13 PIPE BOLLARD(S) PAINTED RED

15 STONE VENEER FACTORY FINISH BROWN

16 METAL CANOPY FACTORY FINISH WHITE

17 EPS TRIM ACCENT PAINTED BEIGE

22 BELLY BEND PAINTED BEIGE

23 FASCIA BOARD PAINTED DARK BROWN

24 TIMBER PAINTED AND SEALED CLEAR

25 CORBEL/OUTRIGGER PAINTED BEIGE

26 STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOFING

FACTORY FINISH WHITE

27 ARBOR/TRELLIS PAINTED CREAM

30 EXTERIOR DOOR PAINTED DARK BROWN

031 IRON GUARDRAIL PAINTED BLACK

032 WINDOW FRAME FACTORY FINISH WHITE

033 DOOR AND FRAME PAINTED CREAM

034 FOAM TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

035 FOAM BAND PAINTED BEIGE

NOTES
1.)   ALL COLOR SELECTIONS TO BE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF FRESNO, AND
BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO APPLICATION, PROVIDE SAMPLES TO ARCHITECT
FOR APPROVAL, ALLOW 3 DAYS MINIMUM FOR RESPONSE.
2.)   STUCCO TEXTURE TO BE LIGHT SAND FINISH.  PROVIDE SAMPLE TO
ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL.
3.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.
4.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.

ATTACHMENT 4 20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



FRONT ELEVATION BUILDING 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B'
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

0'-0"

± 0'-4"

± 9'-4"

± 33'-2"

12

4

12

4

± 8'-4"

± 8'-0"

± 8'-0"

± 9'-4"

EE001
EE028EE256

EE250

EE154

EE248

EE070

EE078

EE178

EE154

EE260

EE256

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDINGS 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE261

EE258 EE260

EE258

EE001

EE250

EE135

EE078

EE048

BACK ELEVATION BUILDINGS 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE001

EE084
EE256

EE078

EE048

EE250

EE154

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDINGS 3 & 5 - UNIT 'B'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE261

EE258 EE260

EE258

EE001

EE250

EE135

EE078

EE048

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

THESE DRAWINGS, DESIGNS SKETCHES, IDEAS, DOCUMENTS,  PLANS,
ARRANGEMENTS, AND OTHER INFORMATION  CONTAINED THEREIN, ARE THE SOLE
AND EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  THESE DOCUMENTS
ARE DELIVERED AND ACCEPTED BY YOU IN  TRUST AND ON THE EXPRESS
CONDITION THAT NEITHER THESE DOCUMENTS OR THE INFORMATION CONTAINED
THEREIN WILL BE COPIED, REPRODUCED, OR DELIVERED  TO OTHERS, EXCEPT AS
SPECIFICALLY INSTRUCTED BY MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  NO REPRODUCED
COPIES (SEPIAS, PHOTO, ETC.) SHALL BE PRODUCED, MADE OR DISTRIBUTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
NOTHING CONTAINED OR  REPRESENTED ON THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE USED
BY OR  DISCLOSED TO ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION FOR  ANY PURPOSE
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
THESE DOCUMENTS AND ALL COPIES WILL BE RETURNED TO MIKE DE ALBA &
ASSOCIATES. UPON REQUEST, VIOLATORS WILL BE  PROSECUTED TO THE FULL
EXTENT OF THE LAW.

©

REVISIONS

DE ALBA ARCHITECTURE
5129 N. FIRST STREET FRESNO
CALIFORNIA 93710
PHONE: 559-225-2800
FAX:       559-225-1122

MIKE DE ALBA, JR.
ARCHITECT

2020 MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES

OWNER:

DRAWINGS PREPARED FOR:

CONTRACTOR:

ARCHITECT'S SEAL

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO.
30-Dec-20

SHEET TITLE

PLOT TIME: 12/30/2020 4:29 PM

DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB# :

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

BUILDINGS 3 & 4 - UNIT 'B'

A-400
200602

CHRISTINE
MD

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY
NOTES

# DESCRIPTION
EE001 3-COAT STUCCO FINISH O/PAPER BACKED WIRE MESH O/2 LAYERS OF TYPE

'D' PAPER O/BUILDING SHEATHING.  PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS WHERE
SHOWN AND GSM WEEP SCREED AT BASE.  PROVIDE LIGHT SAND TEXTURE.

EE028 EXTERIOR WALL LIGHT FIXTURE.
EE070 7/8" STUCCO FINISH O/1" FOAM BOARD.
EE078 DUAL GLAZED WINDOWS.
EE084 SUPPORT POSTS AT 48" O.C. W/INTERMEDIATE MEMBERS AT 4" O.C. AND

HANDRAILS SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 1-1/2" NOR MORE THAN 2" IN CROSS
SECTION DIAMETER.  R ORNAMENTAL DESIGN SUCH THAT NO OBJECT 4" IN
DIAMETER CAN PASS THROUGH.

EE135 CONTINUOUS GALVANIZED SHEET METAL GUTTER AT PERIMETER
OVERHANGS (PAINT TO MATCH FASCIA).  PROVIDE GALVANIZED SHEET
METAL DOWNSPOUT (PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL) W/CONCRETE
SPLASH BLOCKS AT GRADE.  ALL DOWNSPOUTS SHALL DRAIN INTO
PLANTERS/LANDSCAPE AREAS.  PROVIDE DRAIN SYSTEM SO THAT NO
RUNOFF FLOWS OVER WALKWAYS.

EE154 EPS KEYSTONE.
EE181 HOLLOW METAL SHAPE GUARDRAIL.
EE248 FOAM MOLDING BELLY BAND.
EE250 SPANISH TILE ROOF (OWNER TO SELECT) OVER 30# FELT UNDERLAYMENT

OVER PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING.
EE255 WOOD CORBEL
EE256 WROUGHT IRON GUARDRAIL
EE258 DECORATIVE VINYL SHUTTERS
EE260 GABLE END DECORATIVE VENTS WITH DECORATIVE IRON
EE261 EXPANSION JOINT

COLOR MATERIAL SCHEDULE
SYM MATERIAL: FINISH: COLOR:

1 STUCCO FINISH DASH CREAM

2 STUCCO EAVE DASH CREAM

3 STUCCO TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

5 GLAZING CLEAR CLEAR

7 ROOFING TILE FACTORY FINISH RED

11 EXTERIOR METAL
DOOR

PAINTED DARK BROWN

13 PIPE BOLLARD(S) PAINTED RED

15 STONE VENEER FACTORY FINISH BROWN

16 METAL CANOPY FACTORY FINISH WHITE

17 EPS TRIM ACCENT PAINTED BEIGE

22 BELLY BEND PAINTED BEIGE

23 FASCIA BOARD PAINTED DARK BROWN

24 TIMBER PAINTED AND SEALED CLEAR

25 CORBEL/OUTRIGGER PAINTED BEIGE

26 STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOFING

FACTORY FINISH WHITE

27 ARBOR/TRELLIS PAINTED CREAM

30 EXTERIOR DOOR PAINTED DARK BROWN

031 IRON GUARDRAIL PAINTED BLACK

032 WINDOW FRAME FACTORY FINISH WHITE

033 DOOR AND FRAME PAINTED CREAM

034 FOAM TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

035 FOAM BAND PAINTED BEIGE

NOTES
1.)   ALL COLOR SELECTIONS TO BE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF FRESNO, AND
BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO APPLICATION, PROVIDE SAMPLES TO ARCHITECT
FOR APPROVAL, ALLOW 3 DAYS MINIMUM FOR RESPONSE.
2.)   STUCCO TEXTURE TO BE LIGHT SAND FINISH.  PROVIDE SAMPLE TO
ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL.
3.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.
4.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



FRONT ELEVATION BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C'
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

0'-0"

± 0'-4"

± 9'-4"

± 33'-2"

EE001

EE028

EE154

EE256

EE250

EE070

EE248

EE078

± 8'-4"

12

4

12

4

± 8'-0"

± 8'-0"

± 9'-4"

EE154

EE256

BACK ELEVATION BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE001

EE028

EE250

EE084

EE256

EE078

EE048

EE260
EE154

EE135

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE260

EE261

EE258

EE001

EE028

EE078

EE250

EE048

SIDE ELEVATION BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C'
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

EE260

EE261

EE258

EE001

EE028

EE078

EE250

EE048

DESCRIPTIONNO. DATE

THESE DRAWINGS, DESIGNS SKETCHES, IDEAS, DOCUMENTS,  PLANS,
ARRANGEMENTS, AND OTHER INFORMATION  CONTAINED THEREIN, ARE THE SOLE
AND EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  THESE DOCUMENTS
ARE DELIVERED AND ACCEPTED BY YOU IN  TRUST AND ON THE EXPRESS
CONDITION THAT NEITHER THESE DOCUMENTS OR THE INFORMATION CONTAINED
THEREIN WILL BE COPIED, REPRODUCED, OR DELIVERED  TO OTHERS, EXCEPT AS
SPECIFICALLY INSTRUCTED BY MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.  NO REPRODUCED
COPIES (SEPIAS, PHOTO, ETC.) SHALL BE PRODUCED, MADE OR DISTRIBUTED
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
NOTHING CONTAINED OR  REPRESENTED ON THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE USED
BY OR  DISCLOSED TO ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION FOR  ANY PURPOSE
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES.
THESE DOCUMENTS AND ALL COPIES WILL BE RETURNED TO MIKE DE ALBA &
ASSOCIATES. UPON REQUEST, VIOLATORS WILL BE  PROSECUTED TO THE FULL
EXTENT OF THE LAW.

©

REVISIONS

DE ALBA ARCHITECTURE
5129 N. FIRST STREET FRESNO
CALIFORNIA 93710
PHONE: 559-225-2800
FAX:       559-225-1122

MIKE DE ALBA, JR.
ARCHITECT

2020 MIKE DE ALBA & ASSOCIATES

OWNER:

DRAWINGS PREPARED FOR:

CONTRACTOR:

ARCHITECT'S SEAL

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO.
30-Dec-20

SHEET TITLE

PLOT TIME: 12/30/2020 5:14 PM

DRAWN BY:
DATE:
JOB# :

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

BOTTOM LINE

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

PHONE: (559) 286 - 6205
ADDRESS:1703 N. DEWOLF AVENUE CLOVIS CA. 93619
ATTN: JAY VIRK

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

BUILDING 4 - UNIT 'C'

A-500
200602

CHRISTINE
MD

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY
NOTES

# DESCRIPTION
EE001 3-COAT STUCCO FINISH O/PAPER BACKED WIRE MESH O/2 LAYERS OF TYPE

'D' PAPER O/BUILDING SHEATHING.  PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS WHERE
SHOWN AND GSM WEEP SCREED AT BASE.  PROVIDE LIGHT SAND TEXTURE.

EE028 EXTERIOR WALL LIGHT FIXTURE.
EE070 7/8" STUCCO FINISH O/1" FOAM BOARD.
EE078 DUAL GLAZED WINDOWS.
EE084 SUPPORT POSTS AT 48" O.C. W/INTERMEDIATE MEMBERS AT 4" O.C. AND

HANDRAILS SHALL BE NOT LESS THAN 1-1/2" NOR MORE THAN 2" IN CROSS
SECTION DIAMETER.  R ORNAMENTAL DESIGN SUCH THAT NO OBJECT 4" IN
DIAMETER CAN PASS THROUGH.

EE135 CONTINUOUS GALVANIZED SHEET METAL GUTTER AT PERIMETER
OVERHANGS (PAINT TO MATCH FASCIA).  PROVIDE GALVANIZED SHEET
METAL DOWNSPOUT (PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL) W/CONCRETE
SPLASH BLOCKS AT GRADE.  ALL DOWNSPOUTS SHALL DRAIN INTO
PLANTERS/LANDSCAPE AREAS.  PROVIDE DRAIN SYSTEM SO THAT NO
RUNOFF FLOWS OVER WALKWAYS.

EE154 EPS KEYSTONE.
EE181 HOLLOW METAL SHAPE GUARDRAIL.
EE248 FOAM MOLDING BELLY BAND.
EE250 SPANISH TILE ROOF (OWNER TO SELECT) OVER 30# FELT UNDERLAYMENT

OVER PLYWOOD ROOF SHEATHING.
EE255 WOOD CORBEL
EE256 WROUGHT IRON GUARDRAIL
EE258 DECORATIVE VINYL SHUTTERS
EE260 GABLE END DECORATIVE VENTS WITH DECORATIVE IRON
EE261 EXPANSION JOINT

COLOR MATERIAL SCHEDULE
SYM MATERIAL: FINISH: COLOR:

1 STUCCO FINISH DASH CREAM

2 STUCCO EAVE DASH CREAM

3 STUCCO TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

5 GLAZING CLEAR CLEAR

7 ROOFING TILE FACTORY FINISH RED

11 EXTERIOR METAL
DOOR

PAINTED DARK BROWN

13 PIPE BOLLARD(S) PAINTED RED

15 STONE VENEER FACTORY FINISH BROWN

16 METAL CANOPY FACTORY FINISH WHITE

17 EPS TRIM ACCENT PAINTED BEIGE

22 BELLY BEND PAINTED BEIGE

23 FASCIA BOARD PAINTED DARK BROWN

24 TIMBER PAINTED AND SEALED CLEAR

25 CORBEL/OUTRIGGER PAINTED BEIGE

26 STANDING SEAM
METAL ROOFING

FACTORY FINISH WHITE

27 ARBOR/TRELLIS PAINTED CREAM

30 EXTERIOR DOOR PAINTED DARK BROWN

031 IRON GUARDRAIL PAINTED BLACK

032 WINDOW FRAME FACTORY FINISH WHITE

033 DOOR AND FRAME PAINTED CREAM

034 FOAM TRIM PAINTED BEIGE

035 FOAM BAND PAINTED BEIGE

NOTES
1.)   ALL COLOR SELECTIONS TO BE APPROVED BY THE CITY OF FRESNO, AND
BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO APPLICATION, PROVIDE SAMPLES TO ARCHITECT
FOR APPROVAL, ALLOW 3 DAYS MINIMUM FOR RESPONSE.
2.)   STUCCO TEXTURE TO BE LIGHT SAND FINISH.  PROVIDE SAMPLE TO
ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL.
3.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.
4.)   CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 10' X10' PAINT SAMPLES ON COMPLETED WALL
SURFACE OF EACH COLOR FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  SELECT A LESS
OBVIOUS SIDE OF BUILDING FOR SAMPLES, AND AREA SHOULD SHOW 3
COLORS DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ARCHITECT TO BE GIVEN 24
HOUR NOTICE FOR REQUESTED FIELD REVIEW.

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



ATTACHMENT 5

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



PROJECT NO:

APN:

ADDRESS:

SENT:

2021-001

1703 N. DE WOLF AVE.

554-053-41 February 04, 2021

PUBLIC AGENCY

LILY CHA
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
CITY OF CLOVIS
1033 FIFTH STREET
CLOVIS, CA 93612

DEVELOPER

JAY VIRK, BOTTOM LINE GROUP LLC
P.O. BOX 1095
CLOVIS, CA  93613

* The Development Review Service Charge shown above is associated with  CL SPR 2021-001 and is currently proposed to develop in conjunction with this permit. Payment 
for this entitlement shall satisfy the amount due on the associated permits.

Drainage Area(s) Preliminary Fee(s)

3G $26,962.00

Development Review 
Service Charge(s) Fee(s)

NOR Review * $91.00 To be paid prior to release of District comments to Public 
Agency and Developer.

Grading Plan Review * $463.00 Amount to be submitted with first grading plan submittal.

Total Drainage Fee:    $26,962.00 Total Service Charge:    $554.00

The proposed development will generate storm runoff which produces potentially significant environmental impacts and which 
must be properly discharged and mitigated pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental 
Policy Act. The District in cooperation with the City and County has developed and adopted the Storm Drainage and Flood 
Control Master Plan. Compliance with and implementation of this Master Plan by this development project will satisfy the 
drainage related CEQA/NEPA impact of the project mitigation requirements.         

Pursuant to the District’s Development Review Fee Policy, the subject project shall pay review fees for issuance of this Notice of 
Requirements (NOR) and any plan submittals requiring the District’s reviews. The NOR fee shall be paid to the District by 
Developer before the Notice of Requirement will be submitted to the City. The Grading Plan fee shall be paid upon first 
submittal. The Storm Drain Plan fee shall be paid prior to return/pick up of first submittal.         
    
The proposed development shall pay drainage fees pursuant to the Drainage Fee Ordinance prior to issuance of a building permit 
at the rates in effect at the time of such issuance. The fee indicated above is valid through 2/28/21 based on the site plan 
submitted to the District on 1/11/21 Contact FMFCD for a revised fee in cases where changes are made in the proposed site plan 
which materially alter the proposed impervious area.

Considerations which may affect the fee obligation(s) or the timing or form of fee payment: 

a.) Fees related to undeveloped or phased portions of the project may be deferrable.

b.)
Fees may be calculated based on the actual percentage of runoff if different than that typical for the zone district under 
which the development is being undertaken and if permanent provisions are made to assure that the site remains in that 
configuration.

c.) Master Plan storm drainage facilities may be constructed, or required to be constructed in lieu of paying fees.

d.) The actual cost incurred in constructing Master Plan drainage system facilities is credited against the drainage fee 
obligation.

e.) When the actual costs incurred in constructing Master Plan facilities exceeds the drainage fee obligation, 
reimbursement will be made for the excess costs from future fees collected by the District from other development.

f.)
Any request for a drainage fee refund requires the entitlement cancellation and a written request addressed to the 
General Manager of the District within 60 days from payment of the fee. A non refundable $300 Administration fee or 
5% of the refund whichever is less will be retained without fee credit.

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

File No. 210.433

Page 1 of 3

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Approval of this development shall be conditioned upon compliance with these District Requirements.

1.    X   a. Drainage from the site shall BE DIRECTED TO DE WOLF AVENUE.

       b. Grading and drainage patterns shall be as identified on Exhibit No. 

       c. The grading and drainage patterns shown on the site plan conform to the adopted Storm Drainage and 
Flood Control Master Plan. 

2. The proposed development shall construct and/or dedicate Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan facilities 
located within the development or necessitated by any off-site improvements required by the approving agency:

       Developer shall construct facilities as shown on Exhibit No. 1 as  

   X   None required. 

3. The following final improvement plans and information shall be submitted to the District for review prior to final 
development approval:

   X   Grading Plan 

   X   Street Plan 

       Storm Drain Plan 

       Water & Sewer Plan 

       Final Map 

       Drainage Report (to be submitted with tentative map) 

       Other 

       None Required 

4. Availability of drainage facilities:

       a. Permanent drainage service is available provided the developer can verify to the satisfaction of the City 
that runoff can be safely conveyed to the Master Plan inlet(s). 

       b. The construction of facilities required by Paragraph No. 2 hereof will provide permanent drainage service. 

       c. Permanent drainage service will not be available.  The District recommends temporary facilities until 
permanent service is available. 

   X   d. See Exhibit No. 2. 

5. The proposed development:

       Appears to be located within a 100 year flood prone area as designated on the latest Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps available to the District, necessitating appropriate floodplain management action. (See attached 
Floodplain Policy.) 

   X   Does not appear to be located within a flood prone area. 

6.    X   The subject site contains a portion of a canal or pipeline that is used to manage recharge, storm water, 
and/or flood flows. The existing capacity must be preserved as part of site development. Additionally, site 
development may not interfere with the ability to operate and maintain the canal or pipeline. 

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

Page 2 of 3

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



7. The Federal Clean Water Act and the State General Permits for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction 
and Industrial Activities (State General Permits) require developers of construction projects disturbing one or more 
acres, and discharges associated with industrial activity not otherwise exempt from National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permitting, to implement controls to reduce pollutants, prohibit the discharge of waters 
other than storm water to the municipal storm drain system, and meet water quality standards.  These requirements 
apply both to pollutants generated during construction, and to those which may be generated by operations at the 
development after construction.

       a. State General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities, effective July 1, 
2010, as amended.  A State General Construction Permit is required for all clearing, grading, and 
disturbances to the ground that result in soil disturbance of at least one acre (or less than one acre) if part 
of a larger common plan of development or sale).  Permittees are required to: submit a Notice of Intent 
and Permit Registration Documents to be covered and must pay a permit fee to the State Water Resources 
Control Board (State Board), develop and implement a storm water pollution prevention plan, eliminate 
non-storm water discharges, conduct routine site inspections, train employees in permit compliance, and 
complete an annual certification of compliance.  

       b. State General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities, April, 2014 
(available at the District Office).  A State General Industrial Permit is required for specific types of 
industries described in the NPDES regulations or by Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code.  The 
following categories of industries are generally required to secure an industrial permit: manufacturing; 
trucking; recycling; and waste and hazardous waste management.  Specific exemptions exist for 
manufacturing activities which occur entirely indoors.  Permittees are required to: submit a Notice of 
Intent to be covered and must pay a permit fee to the State Water Resources Control Board, develop and 
implement a storm water pollution prevention plan, eliminate non-storm water discharges, conduct routine 
site inspections, train employees in permit compliance, sample storm water runoff and test it for pollutant 
indicators, and annually submit a report to the State Board. 

       c. The proposed development is encouraged to select and implement storm water quality controls 
recommended in the Fresno-Clovis Storm Water Quality Management Construction and Post-Construction 
Guidelines (available at the District Office) to meet the requirements of the State General Permits, 
eliminate the potential for non-storm water to enter the municipal storm drain system, and where possible 
minimize contact with materials which may contaminate storm water runoff. 

8. A requirement of the District may be appealed by filing a written notice of appeal with the Secretary of the District 
within ten days of the date of this Notice of Requirements. 

9. The District reserves the right to modify, reduce or add to these requirements, or revise fees, as necessary to 
accommodate changes made in the proposed development by the developer or requirements made by other agencies.

10.    X   See Exhibit No. 2 for additional comments, recommendations and requirements. 

Debbie Campbell Robert Villalobos

Design Engineer, RCE Engineering Tech III

Digitally signed by Debbie Campbell Date: 2/4/2021 11:50:24 AM Digitally signed by Robert Villalobos Date: 2/4/2021 11:50:05 AM

5469 E. OLIVE - FRESNO, CA 93727 - (559) 456-3292 - FAX (559) 456-3194

FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS

Page 3 of 3

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Permanent drainage service is available provided the developer can verify to the satisfaction of 
the City that runoff can be safely conveyed through existing Dewolf Avenue and into the 
existing temporary inlet.

Development No. CL   CUP  No. 2021-001

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT NO. 2

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



X

Distribution Date:

(In House) (Out-of-House)

x x

x x

x x

x x

x x

x x

x x

x x

x

x

Item(s): Location:

APN: Zoning: General Plan:

Name of Applicant: Phone/Email:

Applicant Address: City: State: CA Zip: 93613

Previously Reviewed Under DRC: Or Other Entitlement:

Project Description:

Please check one below:

No Comments Comments Attached Comments e-mailed or saved on:

They must be legible.  Please phrase positively and clearly:

GOOD EXAMPLE:

POOR EXAMPLE:

REVIEWED BY (please sign):

City of Clovis
Department of Planning and Development Services

CITY HALL - 1033 Fifth Street - Clovis, CA 93612

PLANNING APPLICATION REQUEST FOR COMMENTS

Project Manager - Lily Cha, Associate Planner

Planning Division

Engineering Division

Building Division

Fresno Irrigation District

Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control Dist.

Pacific Gas & Electric

PLEASE ROUTE TO:

1/11/2021

Utilities Division

Other (Specify) County of Fresno Development

LAFCO (when annexation is involved)

Solid Waste Division

AT&T

Clovis Unified School District

State of California Department of Fish and Game

SJV Unified Air Pollution Control Dist.

Fire Department

PLEASE RETURN TO:

Lily Cha, Associate Planner

Planning and Development Services Dept.

1033 Fifth St., Clovis, CA  93612

Phone: 324-2335 Fax: 324-2844

"1.  Prior to occupancy, the developer shall install all landscaping as per the approved plans."

"1.  Install landscaping."

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:  Please draft conditions in final form that are acceptable to your department. 

This item is tentatively scheduled for a public hearing to be considered by the Planning Commission.

Clovis

CUP2021-001; A request to construct a 3-story, 60-unit multi-family development on the property located at 1703 

N. DeWolf Avenue. This request is being processed concurrently with SPR2021-001.

condition form and return to the project manager by 2/1/2021

Cal Trans

PO Box 1095

The attached information is circulated for your comments.  Please attach your comments and recommendations in

Bottom Line Group LLC -Jay Virk (559)286-6205/ jayv@bottom-line.com

Fresno County Environmental Health

Police Department

City Landscape Committee

554-053-41

CUP2021-001 1703 N. De Wolf Avenue

R-3, P-F High Density Residential, Open Space

Legal Description Review

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 21-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 

A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING FOR THE INCREASE OF THE R-3 ZONE 
DISTRICT STANDARD BUILDING HEIGHT OF 2 ½ STORIES (NO GREATER THAN 35 

FEET) TO 3 STORIES (NO GREATER THAN 35 FEET) FOR PROPOSED MULITFAMILY 
BUILDINGS ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1703 DE WOLF AVENUE, AND FINDING THAT 

THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA PERSUANT TO A CLASS 32 CATEGORICAL 
EXEMPTION 

 
 WHEREAS, Jay Virk, on behalf of Bottom Line Group LLC, PO BOX 1095, Clovis, CA 
93613, has applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP2021-001); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an application for a conditional use permit allowing 
for the increase of the R-3 Zone District Standard Building Height from 2 ½ stories, no greater 
than 35 feet, to 3 stories, no greater than 35 feet, for property located at 1703 De Wolf Avenue, 
in the City of Clovis, County of Fresno, California; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public notice was sent out to property owners within 300 feet of said property 
boundaries a minimum of ten days prior to said hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, a duly noticed hearing was held on February 25, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered the CEQA analysis outlined in the staff 

report and elsewhere in the Administrative Record which concludes the Project is exempt from 
CEQA pursuant to a Class 32 categorical exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15332). 

 
WHEREAS, the Commission has reviewed and considered the staff report and all written 

materials submitted in connection with the request, including the conditions attached as 
Attachment 1 to this Resolution and incorporated herein by this reference, and considered all the 
testimony presented during the public hearing. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BASED UPON THE ENTIRE RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, 

THE PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLVES AND FINDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a Class 32 categorical exemption (CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15332).  

 
2. The Project satisfies the required findings for approval of a conditional use permit, as 

follows: 
 
a. The proposed use is conditionally allowed within, and would not impair the integrity and 

character of, the subject zoning district and is in compliance with all of the applicable 
provisions of this Development Code. 
 

b. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific plan.  
 

c. The design, location, size, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are 
compatible with the existing and future land uses and would not create significant noise, 
traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be objectionable or detrimental to other 

37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

allowed uses operating nearby or adverse to the public interest, health, safety, 
convenience, or welfare of the City. 

 
d. The subject parcel is physically suitable in size and shape for the type and 

density/intensity of use being proposed. 
 

e. There are adequate provisions for public access, water, sanitation, and public utilities 
and services to ensure that the proposed use would not be detrimental to public 
health and safety. 
 

f. The proposed project has been reviewed in compliance with the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and there would be no potential significant 
negative effects upon environmental quality and natural resources because, as set forth 
above, the Project is determined to be exempt from CEQA pursuant to a Class 32 
categorical exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15332). 

 
3. Without the conditions of approval set forth in Attachment 1 to this Resolution, the 

Commission could not make the findings necessary for approval of CUP2021-001. 
 

4. The basis for the findings is detailed in the February 25, 2021, staff report, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference, as well as the evidence and comments presented during the 
Public Hearing. 

 
5. CUP2021-001 is hereby approved with incorporation of the conditions of approval set forth 

in Attachment 1 to this Resolution. 
 

*  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 The foregoing resolution was adopted by the Clovis Planning Commission at its regular 
meeting on February 25, 2021, upon a motion by Commissioner ________, seconded by 
Commissioner _______, and passed by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21-___ 
DATED: February 25, 2021 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Paul Hinkle, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________ 
  Renee Mathis, Secretary 

38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	Planning Commission Minutes for 1/28/2021
	PC Minutes 1-28-21

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	CUP2021-001
	CUP2021-001 SR
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 1 - Conditions of Approval
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 2 - Development Statement
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 3 - Site Plan
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 4 - Conceptual Elevations
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 5 - Correspondence From Agencies
	CUP2021-001 Attachment 6 - Draft Resolution

	Bottom

